
Directorate-General European Parliamentary Research Service
Directorate B - Library

QUESTIONS RECEIVED UNTIL 12 NOVEMBER 2014

Subject: Open call for tenders for Implementation of an IT system for managing and
classifying archived documents for the Library of the European Parliament

Ref.: TED Contract notice: 2014/S 0190-334451 published in OJ/S-0190
Invitation to Tender PE/ITEC-CLAVIS14

Dear Madam, Dear Sir,

Following the publication of the contract Notice 334451 in the Official Journal of the European Union
2014/S 0190 on 3 October 2014, the following questions have been received.

Question 1:

Is it possible to obtain the tender documents in another language than English?

Answer:
The specifications exist only in the version displayed on the European Parliament's website
(http://www.europarl.europa.eu/tenders/invitations.htm ). Any interested tenderer may request the
translation of these documents in any official language of the European Union, but a request for
translation will delay the procedure significantly. In case of conflict among the different language
version, the English version is to be considered correct.

Please note that the performance of the contract must be strictly done in English and French, as
stipulated in the tender documents.

Question 2:

The estimated value between 1.000.000 and 2.000.000 EUR,  is it for the 'supplies' part for 2+1+1
years, or does it also include the value of all the specific contracts of the 'services part' until the
maximum of 10 years?

Answer:
The estimated total value of the contract includes both the supply part of the framework contract
relating to the acquisition, installation and configuration of the software (as indicated in document the
"Specifications and the annexes thereto", page 5) and the provision of services (idem).

Question 3:

We have taken part in the previous call for tender, and we have had no contact since then. We don't
know what our position is.

Answer:
The tender published under this reference is a new one, totally independent from the previous one.
Absolutely nothing related to the previous tender will have any influence whatsoever with the current
one.
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Question 4:

In the “Specification and annexes” document, we found at page 169 the “Annex IV -Form8:
Functional requirements questionnaire”, the description of last column is “Reference to a specific
point in the offer”. This offer isn’t listed in the “Conditions for submitting a tender”.

Is it necessary to prepare a descriptive offer in addition to the forms and questionnaire? is there a form
for the technical offer? Which characteristics should it have? Which are the font and the length?

Answer:
Yes, a description of the offer should be provided. There is no form for the technical offer. There are
neither any specific instructions for the characteristics, fonts nor length.

Question 5:

The tender specifications indicate in Annex I.2, page 89, the following “With regard to software,
Parliament is taking an open source solution approach whenever possible. Special arrangements
governing the acquisition and use of open source software are submitted for validation”. This term
was also included in the tender specifications of the previous call for tenders (PE-ITEC-DIT-ITIM-
2012/03-CLAVIS). However, the tender specifications of the new CfT also indicate in in the same
Annex, page 92 that “SharePoint with Out Of The Box features restricted to collaborative needs of
European Parliament”.
Question:
Should we understand that since the European Parliament adopted in the meantime MS SharePoint as
part of its infrastructure, that now a MS SharePoint solution would be preferred? Could you please
confirm or clarify?

Answer:
All call for tenders are independent from each other including previous ones with the same or similar
subject. The evaluation of tenders submitted under CLAVIS14 will be performed exclusively on the
basis of the specifications published within this call for tenders.

SharePoint, like any other hardware or software component part of the IT architecture of the EP, is
listed with its status in the document "Annex I.2: The European Parliament’s IT environment". This
document does not include any ranking or preference regarding the listed items.

Question 6:

In the Administrative Part – section 1 are required the articles of association of the firm acting as
representative, or of each firm in the case of a consortium of economic operators together with details
of its registered office, capital structure, shareholders, holdings and the composition of its board of
directors, or any other document reflecting the legal status of the economic operator;

Is it enough just to enclose a copy of the original documents (in the original language) when they are
written in in one of the official languages of the European Union but different from English or
French? If not…do we have to translate the articles of association and the other documents reflecting
the legal status of the economic operator in English?

Answer:
Please send the documents in their original language, as it is one of the EU languages anyway. There
is no need to provide a translation.
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Question 7:

1. In the administrative part section 2 p. 5/9, it reads: “If the tenderer intends to make use of
subcontracting, all the documents referred to above must also be provided, without fail, for each
subcontractor proposed”. We understand that in the case of a consortium, only the leader of the
consortium must provide all the documents asked for in section 2. Could you please confirm our
understanding?

2. Admin part section 2, p 5/9 and p. 9 of the specifications regarding annex IV form0: are we correct
in understanding that, in the case of a consortium where a power of attorney is annexed, only the
representative company has to fill in that form?  Or do all consortium members have to fill it,
independently of the provision of a power of attorney?  Please specify.

3. In the administrative part section 2: “Financial identification form”, in annex IV-Form1 it is asked
to provide “an official document showing the name of the legal entity, the registration address, the
VAT number and the registration number given by the national authorities”.
In section 3 of the administrative part it is asked to provide “all the documents establishing that the
tenderer meets the selection criteria relating to the legal capacity as laid down in point 14 of the
specifications” where you ask for “a copy of their articles of association or equivalent document
enabling the EP to determine their form and legal capacity to perform the contract”.
We understand that we need to provide those documents only once and may refer to it in another
section. Could you please confirm that and if not could you please clarify what you expect to be
provided in each section?

4. About Section 1 of the technical proposal (cf. Conditions, p. 6 and Annex IV-Form 7):
- Are we correct in understanding that the form has to be filled in by the consortium leader in
case of a consortium?
Regarding the quality of the proposed approach and that of allied services, are we allowed to
provide those as separate documents or does the 3 pages description have to be inserted in the
form?

5. In view of your answer to question 4 and in order to provide you with the best possible proposal,
could you postpone the deadline for this RFP by 14 days?

Answers:
1. We confirm that your understanding is correct.

2. Yes, all consortium members have to fill it out (see also page 138).

3. Section 5 of the document "Conditions for submitting a tender" describes the formal requirements
for the content and the presentation of submitted tenders.

4. Yes, the document Annex IV-Form 7 should be filled out only once, by the consortium leader in
case of a consortium. You are allowed to provide a separate 3-page document to answer the
question relating to the quality of allied services.

5. No, postponing the deadline by 14 days is not possible.
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Question 8:

1. Are we correct in understanding that, should the archives management solution use an Oracle DB,
advantage can be taken of the EP licences (and no licence costs have to be included in our
proposal)?  Please confirm.

2. In the same way, we understand that the necessary technical infrastructure will be provided by the
EP.  We have taken due note of the IT environment description (p. 85-91 of the specifications).
As this will have an influence on the performance of the system, could you specify what machine
types will be made available for the archives management solution: core nr, memory, OS, OS
version, etc?

Answers:

1. The hardware and the licenses for the operating system and database are provided by the European
Parliament. (See SPECIFICATIONS AND THE ANNEXES THERETO page 13)

2. A wide range of machines are available to increase the capacity of computing power of the
European Parliament. These machines are available through official call for tenders and are related
to either Microsoft or UNIX/Linux Operating systems. The characteristics of the machines are
subject to changes following the market but their capacity ranges from small departmental servers
to high end servers.

The information listed on page 86-88 of the document Annex I.2 "The European Parliament's IT
environment" gives the hardware and the current minimum configurations of the servers which
will be made available by the European Parliament for the historical archives and document
management solution selected in this procedure.

Question 9:

1. In the document SPECIFICATIONS AND THE ANNEXES, 14.2 Technical and professional
capacity, pp. 11 of 194, it is stated that “b) experience with at least three similar IT development
projects, carried out over the course of the past 8 years, in the field of archiving solutions for
cultural heritage organisations (library, museum, historical archives)”.
Question:
Our understanding is that IT development projects in the field of archiving and document
management for European institutions cover this requirement even if not executed for cultural
heritage organisations. Please confirm our understanding.

2. In the document SPECIFICATIONS AND THE ANNEXES, 3 Requirements, pp. 29 of 194, it is
stated that “The requirements described in this part should be interpreted as the general
functional requirements for the solution describing its functionalities from a user perspective.
They detail the capabilities and functions that the solution must be capable of performing. The
focus is on what the solution must do; details on how the solution will operate will be defined with
the tenderer in the functional specifications during phase 1 of the project.”
And
In the document SPECIFICATIONS AND THE ANNEXES, Annex IV-Form8: Functional
requirements questionnaire, pp. 170 of 194, it is stated that “Classification of functionalities: O –
Obligatory; I – Important; D – Desirable”, and “Available in basic version Y/N” and “Offered in
adapted solution Y/N” columns.
And
In the document SPECIFICATIONS AND THE ANNEXES, Annex V: Price list, pp. 190 of 194,
“Global cost for the Basic supply” category, it is stated that “The flat-rate price for the acquisition
of the licence with functionalities classified as O-Obligatory (cf. Annex IV-Form8), installation
and adaptation of the documentation and archive management software offered, recovery of the
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data and documents in the existing system and entering them in the new one.” field.
Questions:

a) Our understanding is that the term “basic version” of the solution refers to the out-of-the-box
software product without any further adaptations. Please confirm or clarify.

b) Our understanding is that not all obligatory functionalities need to be available in the basic version
of the solution. Please confirm or clarify.

c) Finally, our understanding is that the adaptation of the basic solution to meet all obligatory
requirements is part of the basic supply. Please confirm of clarify.

Answers:
1. As section 14.2 of the Specifications states, only IT development projects in the field of archiving

solutions for cultural heritage organisations such a libraries, musea or historical archives can be
taken into account.

2. a) This is correct. For example, on p. 170 of Annex IV-Form8: Functional requirements
questionnaire, the term "basic version" refers to an "out of the box" software product, without any
further adaptations or customisations.

b) This is correct. Obligatory functionalities need to be either available in the basic version of the
solution, or available by some adaptation or customisation of the basic version.

c) This is correct.

Question 10:

We have a request for additional information regarding tender PE/ITEC –ClAVIS14 Setting up a
historical archives and document management solution:

1. Annex IV-Form1: financial identification form.
This form is a picture. Could you, please, send us a form which can be edited so we can fill in the
information digitally? If not. Is a form filled by handwriting admissible?

2. In Annex IV – Form6 section “ Technical and professional capacity” under 14.2 you are asking for a
document with a list of principal services. “b) a list of the principal services, similar to those required by
the contract concerned, …..” (See document “Specifications and the annexes thereto”, page 11).
Are the principal services the services mentioned in the framework contract (page 3) under the provision of
services?
If not, please, could you give us a list of which services you are referring to?
Could you provide us with an editable format of the presentation of the required information about the
principal services?

Answers:
1. The form Annex IV – Form1 is an Excel sheet that should first be saved locally before being

edited.
2. Please refer to the answer provided to the question 9.1.
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Question 11:

Please find herewith questions regarding above call for tenders.

1.       SLA
About Annex II SLA, p. 101: “A technical annex must be drawn up….”: could you please specify by
which party that annex is drawn up?

2.       Training
On p. 59 of the specifications, 3 different types of training are requested: for “users of the software”,
for (database) administrators and for “2-3 key members of the EP technical staff”.  No mention of
users’ categories is given in the SLA (p. 106).  On p. 192 (Price list), the following types of courses
are specified: User, User support and Technical maintenance.
Furthermore, from the specifications, we understood there was one database administrator (who has
the ability to configure several parameters of the system), several archivists (taking care of data entry
as well as of specialized searches) and end users, essentially using the system to retrieve information
through the standard search interface.
Are we correct in understanding the requested types of training as follows:
- Users: are the archivists
- User support: is the database administrator
- Technical maintenance: are the 2-3 key members of the EP technical staff?
Please confirm or explain how each (price) category has to be understood.

3.       Working days
On p. 106 of the specifications (SLA), it is specified “the service provider must undertake to provide
the training courses required on every European Parliament working day, which may include national
public holidays” although on p. 100, working days are defined as “Monday to Friday, except official
public holidays in the countries concerned and official European Parliament office closing days.”
Furthermore, on p. 25, article II.21 of the framework contract, it reads: “In performance of this
contract the Contractor undertakes to comply with the statutory obligations concerning protection of
employees and working conditions in force in accordance with applicable laws.”
Are we correct in understanding that:
- the concerned countries are Luxembourg, Belgium and France?
- the service provider has to comply with statutory obligations in its country (in our case Belgium) in
first instance (i.e. and not to provide training courses on national (Belgian) public holidays)?
Please confirm.

Answers:
1. The technical annex is drawn by the European Parliament.

2. Your understanding is correct.

3. Based on the information provided in the SLA, page 106 ("...The courses must take place at the
European Parliament’s premises in Luxembourg..."), we confirm that the country where the
training courses will take place is Luxembourg and, therefore, training could be requested on days
which are public holidays in other countries.
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Question 12:

1. Question in relation to the maximum duration of the contract:

We would appreciate if the EP could confirm the following assumption in relation to the duration of
the contract.

• The maximum possible length of the contract is 14 years: Supply part (2+1+1) & Service
provision (2+1+1+1+1+1+1+1+1)

• Is our understanding correct that the Service provision part will not start until the Supply part
(2+1+1) is accepted? Example:

• Let’s assume that the Supply part last up to 3 years (2+1. Is correct to understand that the
Service part (2+1+1+1+1+1+1+1+1) will start in year 4 for an initial period of two years but still
will remain 8 years (1+1+1+1+1+1+1+1)? It means that the total length for this example will be
13 years.

2. Question in relation to the Pricing Criteria

On page 13 of the document “Specifications and the annexes thereto” state that the total price will be
calculated on the basis of the following (….).

1) Is our understanding correct that this scenario is only for comparison purpose among the different
offers?

2) Is our understanding correct that the EP will gather the information coming from the Annex V –
Price List? Consequently the bidder does ONLY need to fulfil such Annex.

3) If the above assumption is correct, could the EP clarify the following:

a. In the table page 13 of the document “Specification……” within the ELEMENTS column the
EP has divided the development Type 2 in: Supplies I-Important and Supplies D-Desirables,
while in the Annex V we can ONLY propose one price for the 2 types of developments. Our
understanding is that the EP was expecting two different prices in light of the table of page 13.
Could the EP clarify which price per day of the ANNEX V is going to be used to fulfil the
Development Type 2 of the table page 13? If two different prices are expected to be used, one
for each development type, could you let us know how we can propose two different prices in
ANNEX V (if applicable)?

b. The same in relation to the training. In Table page 13 of the document “Specifications….”
ONLY one price per day for training is aimed to be provided but in the ANNEX V, there are 3
different types of training depending on the type of course. Could the EP inform us which
reference is going to be used in order to fulfil the ELEMENT TRAINING of the table in page
13? Notice: Each type of training set in ANNEX V will probably different length and price per
day, consequently, according to our understanding is needed to select ONLY one in order to be
able to compare among the offers.

c. In Table page 13  of the document “Specifications….” it is defined the following quantities: 25
days for Support, 19 days for training, 56 for Consultancy and 125 for Development Type 1.

i. Could the EP confirm that this quantity refers to the expected volume per year and not for
the total Service Provision

ii. Is our understanding correct that the above volumes are ONLY applicable from the 1st
year of the Service provision?
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Answers:

1. Question in relation to the maximum duration of the contract:

There is only one framework contract which starts at the same time to deliver supplies and to provide
services.  The maximum possible length of this framework contract for the supply is 4years and the
maximum possible length of this framework contract for the provision of services is ten years. Look to
article I.1 and article I.2 duration of the draft framework contract Supply & services contract.

2. Question in relation to the Pricing Criteria

1) Yes, we confirm that your understanding is correct.

2) Yes, we confirm that your understanding is correct.

3) Here is the requested clarification:

a. We confirm that there is only one price requested for development of type 2 in Annex- V. (See
page 14 of the SPECIFICATIONS AND THE ANNEXES THERETO and the corrigendum 1.)

b. We will use the weighted-average price of the  3 different types of training as the price reference
for the evaluation.

c. Regarding the table page 13 of the document “Specifications….”, we confirm the following:

i. These are total quantities for  the contract throughout its period of validity which will be used
for the evaluation (See page 13-14 of the SPECIFICATIONS AND THE ANNEXES
THERETO)

ii. These are total quantities for  the contract throughout its period of validity which will be used
for the evaluation (See page 13-14 of the SPECIFICATIONS AND THE ANNEXES
THERETO)

Question 13:

1. In the SPECIFICATIONS AND THE ANNEXES, Annex I.2: The European Parliament’s IT
environment, page 89 of 194, it is indicated that the database servers in the IT environment are
based on Oracle (commercial), PostgreSQL (open source), and CouchDB (restricted user) DBMS
technologies.

and

SPECIFICATIONS AND THE ANNEXES, Annex V: Price list, page 190 of 194, table Basic
supply/Global cost for the Basic supply, “The flat-rate price for the acquisition of the licence with
functionalities classified as O-Obligatory (cf. Annex IV-Form8), installation and adaptation of the
documentation and archive management software offered, recovery of the data and documents in
the existing system and entering them in the new one”.

Questions:

Our understanding is that the basic supply price and the maintenance costs per year do not include
any license and maintenance cost for system software that is already part of the European
Parliament’s infrastructure (e.g. Oracle). Please confirm.



9/9

2. In the SPECIFICATIONS AND THE ANNEXES, Section 14.2. Technical and professional
capacity, page 11 of 194, “a) a team of experts (…): a project leader responsible for providing the
services, with at least 5 years' proven experience in the field covered by the invitation to tender,”
and “Depending on the nature, quantity or scale and purpose of the supplies, (…): a) CVs: the
educational and professional qualifications (…). The CVs supplied should cover at least the
following profiles: 1 project manager profile (min. 5 years' experience), (…)”

and

SPECIFICATIONS AND THE ANNEXES, Section 5.2 Project management, page 62 of 194,
“Project management will be handled by the tenderer, who will assign a dedicated project
manager.”

and

SPECIFICATIONS AND THE ANNEXES, Section 5.3 On-site presence of contractor, page 62 of
194, “From project inception to completion, the project manager is required to be present during
working hours at the European Parliament’s premises in Luxembourg for an average of at least
one of the five working days per week (…)”

and

SPECIFICATIONS AND THE ANNEXES, Annex II: Service level requirements (SLA), Section
3.1. Project manager, page 108 of 194, “The project manager will liaise between the service
provider and the European Parliament and will be in charge of the performance of the framework
contract.” and

SPECIFICATIONS AND THE ANNEXES, Annex V: Price list, page 190 of 194, underneath
table Basic supply, “(*): Covers all costs, including any travel and/or subsistence costs for
technicians and project team leader and delivery costs, excluding VAT”.

Questions:

Please clarify whether the project leader profile described in Section 14.2 or project team leader in
Annex V is the same with the Project Manager profile defined in referred Sections.

Answers:

1. Yes, we confirm. See also answer to question 8.1.

2. Yes, it is the same profile.


